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1                     Prehearing Conference

2                       September 16, 2013

3                           PROCEEDINGS

4   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Good af ternoon. This

5 is the t ime and the place for the dually not iced prehearing

6 conference in Docket No. 13-035-115, in the matter of  the

7 applicat ion of  Rocky Mountain Power for approval of  the power

8 purchase agreement between Pacif iCorp and Blue Mountain

9 Power Partners, LLC, and also in Docket No. 13-035-116, in the

10 matter of  the applicat ion--in the matter of  the applicat ion of

11 Rocky Mountain Power for approval of  the power purchase

12 agreement between Pacif iCorp and Latigo W ind Park, LLC.

13   I 'm Jordan White.  The Commissioners have asked

14 me to act as the presiding of f icer for the matters.  I  want to go

15 ahead and begin by taking appearances, i f  that is okay.  We wil l

16 start here with Mr. Solander.

17   MR. SOLANDER:  Daniel Solander, on behalf  of

18 Rocky Mountain Power.  I  also wanted to conf irm this is being

19 streamed.  We have a number of  folks who were not able to be

20 here today but wanted to be able to l isten to the proceedings.

21   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Yes, this is being

22 streamed, yes.

23   MR. JETTER:  Just in Jetter,  on behalf  of  the Utah

24 Division of  Public Uti l i t ies.

25   MR. SACKETT:  Gary G. Sackett for Lat igo W ind
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1 Farms.

2   MR. DODGE:  Gary Dodge on behalf  of  Blue

3 Mountain Power Partners, LLC.

4   MR. SACKETT:  And that 's a correct ion, i t 's Lat igo

5 Wind Park, pardon me.

6   MS. WOOD:  Mary Anne Wood and Stephen Wood

7 on behalf  of  El l is-Hall .

8   MS. HAYES:  Sophie Hayes with Utah Clean

9 Energy, and I would just l ike to add at this point that it 's my

10 intention to part icipate by observing today.

11   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood.  Just to

12 be clear for today, we wil l  be dealing with some motions but

13 there wil l  be some issues to deal with, with respect to kind of

14 the process for the hearing, so that may be a good point for you

15 to get involved.

16   MS. HAYES:  Thank you.

17   MS. BECK:  Good af ternoon.  My name is Michelle

18 Beck f rom the Off ice of  Consumer Services.  The Off ice's

19 counsel was unable to attend today and we are not a party to

20 most of  those sub motions, but we are here i f  something comes

21 up procedural ly.  So with your indulgence, I ' l l  s i t  in the

22 audience, but i f  something arises procedural ly, perhaps I can

23 come back to weigh in, i f  necessary.

24   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood, and I

25 appreciate i t  very much.  And just for my clari f icat ion, is i t
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1 Lateego (sic) or Lat igo?

2   MR. SACKETT:  Lat igo.

3   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay, that is helpful.  

4 I apologize for mispronunciat ion thus far.

5   Okay.  The f irst matter I  would l ike to address today

6 is just the pending motions.  Let 's start  by with Docket

7 13-035-115.  We have an August 26, 2013 motion to leave to

8 f i le overlength of  object ion to approval of  Blue Mountain power

9 purchase agreement f rom Ell is-Hall .   That motion is granted.

10   We also have, in Docket 13-035-116, a motion to

11 leave to f i le overlength object ion of  approval of  Lat igo power

12 purchase agreement, also f i led by Ell is-Hall ,  and that motion

13 has also been granted.

14   Okay.  Let 's--we have a series of  motions to compel

15 discovery.  Let 's start  with Docket No. 13-035-115.  We have

16 Ell is-Hall 's--by Ell is-Hall ,  I  apologize, I  mean Ell is-Hall

17 Consultants.  I  am just brief ing that.   I  apologize--August 26,

18 2013 statement of  discovery issues and motion and

19 memorandum to compel Blue Mountain.  So I 've read the

20 pleadings with respect to this motion, and what I  would l ike to

21 do today, with your indulgence, is just to--I  am going to have the

22 part ies, you know, provide any addit ional information or

23 arguments they think are beyond or pert inent to the scope of

24 their pleadings, just to help inform the decision today.

25   So, you know, we are going to start with the motion
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1 to compel Blue Mountain, so why don't  we start with Ms. Wood

2 or Mr. Wood, whoever wants to address this for the motion to

3 compel Blue Mountain.

4   MR. WOOD:  Would you l ike us to approach the

5 lectern?

6   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Whatever you're

7 comfortable with.  Typical ly, i t 's f ine for you to sit  down. 

8 Whatever you're comfortable with, Mr. Wood.

9   MR. WOOD:  Thank you.  I  think we have laid out

10 our arguments fair ly clearly in our brief ing.  You know, I  think

11 from a start ing point,  i t 's fundamental to understand that

12 discovery is important to due process. Al l  part ies are enti t led to

13 reasonable access to al l  evidence that bears on the controversy

14 before them, and I think i t 's undisputed here that Blue Mountain

15 has fai led to produce al l  the documents that we've requested in

16 our discovery request.

17   They have fai led to produce documents based on

18 boilerplate unsubstantiated object ions, which we have

19 demonstrated is contrary to law.  In order to state an object ion,

20 the object ion must be non boilerplate specif ic and supported

21 with facts.  You don't get to just--you don't  get to avoid

22 discovery with a l i tany of  overbroad and unduly burdensome,

23 and they have fai led to substantiate their object ions in both of

24 their responses and in their response to our motion to compel.

25   And I would just focus the Commission on the



                                                           Prehearing Conference   09/16/13 8

1 prejudice that this causes to Ell is-Hall .   El l is-Hall  has been

2 forced to make its claims on an expedited basis.  Blue Mountain

3 and Pacif iCorp were in support of  an expedited hearing.  Blue

4 Mountain's counsel thought that this could al l be done in a

5 week; yet when we f i led discovery requests, we got stonewalled

6 and documents have not been produced to us.

7   And to force Ell is-Hall  to go before the Commission

8 and support al l  of  i ts al legations without those essential

9 documents works a substantial prejudice against El l is-Hall ,  the

10 denial of  El l is-Hall 's due process rights, and Blue Mountain

11 cannot fai l  to provide documents without substantiat ing i ts

12 object ion.  I t 's fai led to do so.

13   I  don't  know if  the Commission has any questions

14 for me specif ic.   I  think i t 's pretty clear what has been withheld. 

15 What has been withheld has been set forth in the responses. 

16 Almost al l  of  the documents were objected to based on

17 relevancy and on the basis of  being overly broad and unduly

18 burdensome.  I  don't  think either one of  those object ions, even

19 though they aren't  substantiated, stands up to the merits.

20   I t 's been Blue Mountain's posit ion throughout this

21 proceeding that El l is-Hall 's project has nothing do with the

22 approval of  Blue Mountain's PPA, that i ts claims of  disparage

23 treatment are not properly before the Commission, that i ts

24 diverging representat ions to the Commission and to City and

25 County off icials in San Juan County and Monticel lo have no
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1 bearing on whether i ts PPA should be approved.  I  don't  think

2 any of those arguments hold water, but, in any event, the

3 Commission has granted our Motion to Intervene, we have made

4 those al legations; therefore, our discovery requests are direct ly

5 relevant to the claims of defenses asserted in this matter and

6 we respectfully ask for the Commission to grant our motion to

7 compel.

8   We'd ask that the documents be provided to us,

9 that El l is-Hall  be granted a sanction of  i ts attorneys' fees, and

10 we further request that,  you know--really, we give the

11 Commission an option; i f  El l is-- i f  Blue Mountain is not going to

12 produce the documents, then we think an adverse inference

13 should be taken against Blue Mountain's representat ion.  I f  Blue

14 Mountain is wil l ing to produce the documents, then we think that

15 the hearing should be rescheduled for a date one week af ter

16 they have made ful l  and complete disclosures, and we

17 respectful ly ask that our motion be granted.

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay, thank you, Mr.

19 Wood.  Mr. Dodge?

20   MR. DODGE:  Thank you, Mr. White.  This case

21 has, very frankly, strained my own belief  in my abil i ty to

22 communicate.  Mr. Wood started with saying i t 's undisputed that

23 documents have been withheld.  To the contrary, we have stated

24 very clearly that we've produced every document that my cl ient

25 can locate in their f i les responsive to any of  the nine requests.
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1 That is my representat ion here based on my cl ient 's

2 representat ion to me, that he does not have access to any other

3 documents responsive to the request.

4   I  could, and probably should, stop there.  I  have

5 said that.  They refuse to accept i t .   They seem more intent on

6 throwing out accusations and insist ing upon delays than they do

7 on actually gett ing the documents, but I  think I  do need to

8 address a couple of  things that Mr. Wood said.

9   First of  al l,  there is no prejudice because the

10 documents were produced.  There was init ial ly an object ion and

11 I bel ieve a proper one.  Mr. Wood l ikes to cite documents f rom

12 all  over the country as though it 's textbook law as to how he

13 chooses to interpret the discovery object ions and responses. 

14 It 's not.  I t 's not nearly as clear as he l ikes to say i t ,  but

15 notwithstanding that,  we, ult imately, decided, rather than f ight

16 over relevance because the schedule was what i t  was, what i t  is,

17 that we would simply produce them and we have done that.  

18 We've produced them weeks ago now.  He's had several weeks

19 with the documents prior to the hearing.  There is certainly no

20 prejudice.

21   I  do understand that Mr. Wood is used to court

22 cases that draw on for four years.  Before this Commission,

23 mult ibi l l ion dollar rate case decisions are made in much shorter

24 time than these kinds of  hearings, for QF usually proceeds on a

25 much shorter schedule than the one here today, so this is not an
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1 expedited schedule.  This is a normal schedule for this kind of

2 process.

3   Mr. Wood and his cl ient have chosen to raise

4 issues that,  in my view and in my continuing view, are

5 completely irrelevant to anything this Commission has before i t

6 for approval or needs to resolve, notwithstanding that we

7 produced every document that we could f ind and I don't  know

8 what more we can do.

9   I t 's hypocrit ical in the extreme for them to demand

10 here and demand sanctions.  First of  al l ,  they are inappropriate

11 and the Commission doesn't  have the authority to grant what

12 they've asked for,  but that aside, i t 's hypocrit ical in the extreme

13 given that El l is-Hall has refused to produce even one document,

14 even one, to either Rocky Mountain Power or Blue Mountain in

15 response to our data request.

16   They stand here and say that their PPA is not

17 before the Commission and so correspondence and draf ts of

18 that agreement are irrelevant at the same t ime they claim that

19 they were treated in a dif ferent way. However are we to resolve

20 those issues if  they refuse to produce them.  That is a dif ferent

21 issue.  That is the next phase of  the hearing when we talk about

22 issues before the Commission.  We accept their representat ion

23 that they are irrelevant and we've said the same thing al l  along,

24 but then to turn and claim that claiming irrelevance on our part

25 was somehow inappropriate and ask for sanctions is kind of
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1 beyond the pale.

2   So I wil l  close by saying we have produced

3 everything we know how to.  I f  they want to come rummage

4 through our drawers, we can al low them to do that, but i t  is

5 inappropriate to grant any kind of  continuance or any kind of

6 sanctions.  Thank you.

7   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.

8   MR. WOOD:  May I rebut a few statements?

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  understand there are

10 things to rebut.  What I was planning on doing, i f  i t  is okay with

11 the part ies, is al lowing--we have four of  these motions to

12 compel and would i t  make sense to al low--again, to go to

13 whatever, the applicant or the proponent, and then the party

14 that is being compelled, to go through each of  these.  And if

15 Ell is-Hall  has--you know, i f  they want to rebut in total or do you

16 want to do these--I  am just trying to expedite this.  I f  you want,

17 we can do it  piece by piece.

18   MR. WOOD:  I think i t  would make more sense to

19 handle them one at a t ime just because the issues presented by

20 each one are sl ight ly dif ferent, so if  I  could just rebut --

21   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That would be helpful,

22 if  there are dif ferent issues.  I f  you would point that out,  that is

23 f ine.

24   MR. WOOD:  First,  Blue Mountain makes the

25 statement that they've produced al l responsive documents and
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1 that is simply demonstrat ively not true.  El l is-Hall  request No. 4

2 asked for,  please produce al l  documents relat ing to turbine

3 specif icat ions wind project,  including but not l imited to any

4 documents submitted to Pacif iCorp, San Juan County or the City

5 of  Monticel lo. That document request has not been complied

6 with.

7   Request No. 5:  Please produce all  documents and

8 communication between you and any of f icial or employee of  San

9 Juan County regarding you wind project.  That has not been

10 complied with.

11   Request No. 6:  Please produce all  communications

12 between you and any of f icial or employee of  the City of

13 Monticel lo regarding your wind project.  That has not been

14 complied with.

15   Please produce al l  documents relat ing to your LGIA

16 applicat ion.  That has not been complied with.

17   Please produce al l  documents relat ing to your

18 condit ional use permit or building permit applicat ions submitted

19 to San Juan County.  That request has not been complied with.

20   Please produce al l  the maps of .

21   Your proposed wind farm sites submitted to

22 Pacif iCorp, San Juan County, or the City of  Monticello by you. 

23 That has not been complied with.  These requests have not

24 been complied with.

25   What Blue Mountain has produced is
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1 correspondence with Pacif iCorp but i t  has objected to a whole

2 basis of  documents and refuse to produce those. So that

3 statement that they produced everything is just not true.  The

4 only way you get there is if  you ignore our request.

5   Second, Blue Mountain takes exception to our

6 cit ing of  federal law.  I  would note that in our brief  we cite that

7 the Utah Supreme Court has held that federal law addressing

8 analis federal rules of  civi l  procedure is equally applicable as

9 Utah law.  That is because Utah law has not addressed the wide

10 body of  issues that federal law has.  Our citat ions are correct.

11 Mr. Dodge says that there is some kind of  spl it  among the

12 authority.  He has cited no case that supports the manner in

13 which he's logged his objections or to support the way he did his

14 object ions.  So if  he has something, he should have cited.

15   And, last ly, Mr. Dodge argues that Rule 37 does not

16 apply here and that the court--that the Commission does not

17 have the power to award sanctions. That is direct ly rebutted by

18 the Commission's rules. Rule 37 is applied in the Commission

19 rules and in dealing with discovery motions.  So it 's easy to

20 make arguments without any support but when you look at the

21 underlying document request, when you look at the applicable

22 law, and when you look at the rules of  the Commission, there is

23 no basis to assert that they have complied with our discovery

24 request.  Thank you.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.



                                                           Prehearing Conference   09/16/13 15

1   MR. DODGE:  Can I respond the factual part of  that

2 and won't  argue the legal part?  I  delivered to Mr. Wood a disk

3 that looks just l ike this one.

4   Did you look at i t?

5   MR. WOOD:  I did.

6   MR. DODGE:  On this document are documents that

7 we've submitted to San Juan County, any documents that we've

8 submitted to Monticel lo, there are none, any documents we've

9 submitted in connection with the LGIA. They were produced in

10 the f irst round and in this one. Any documents we submitted for

11 our condit ional use permit.   There were dozens of  them l i teral ly

12 in here and any maps that we have, they were on here.  I  mean,

13 if  he is going to sit  here and l ie about what we've produced, we

14 may have a dif ferent proceeding we need to get into where I

15 show you the thousands of  documents we've produced and let

16 them prove that there is something missing because there is

17 not.

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  appreciate the

19 arguments.  I  think there is a disagreement of  what has been

20 produced and what hasn't  and I also have the pleadings, you

21 know, that have been argued with respect to relevance, etc.,  so

22 I think that--you know, I am not sure i f  this is the t ime or place

23 to go through a document by document review and I am just

24 going to have to, you know, take the arguments, you know, with

25 the weight they are given with respect to what has been
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1 provided and what hasn't.

2   So with that,  let 's go ahead and move on to the

3 second motion to compel, which is the motion to compel also

4 f i led in docket 13-35-115.  This is the Ell is-Hall  August 26, 2013

5 statement of  discovery issues and motion of memorandum to

6 compel Rocky Mountain Power.

7   Again, i f  i t  makes sense, Mr. Wood, if  you want to

8 proceed with, you know, anything addit ional beyond what has

9 been pled thus far.

10   MR. WOOD:  I would just say I  think the situat ion

11 as to Pacif iCorp is sl ight ly dif ferent. Pacif iCorp was more

12 responsive to our discovery request and they produced many,

13 many more documents than Blue Mountain did, which I  think

14 would evidence that Blue Mountain didn't  release al l  their

15 documents i f  Pacif iCorp has three t imes the number of

16 documents that Blue Mountain has and their correspondence

17 went back and forth.  Perhaps, Blue Mountain can explain why it

18 doesn't  have those documents but in event, Pacif iCorp made a

19 more substantial ef fort  to comply with our discovery request.

20   A couple points I  would point out where Pacif iCorp

21 stepped out of  l ine.  First is with response to numerous

22 requests, Pacif iCorp has taken the posit ion that publicly

23 available documents are available on a certain websites, either

24 referring to the PSC's main heading website or i ts main heading

25 website as a response to request for discovery.  That is
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1 improper. You can't  just say, "Here is a website.  You go f igure

2 out and you f ind the documents."  So that is one area in which

3 Pacif iCorp made improper responses.

4   The other would be that Pacif iCorp did not produce

5 many documents unti l  well  past the deadline, the seven-day

6 deadline.  In fact,  we got a large port ion of  documents,

7 hundreds and thousands of  pages, a couple of  days ago, and,

8 once again, that-- i t 's not a no harm, no foul situat ion.  We are

9 dealing with an expedited docket.  We have come in as counsel

10 at the last minute, we are trying to get a feel for al l of  the

11 documents, and to produce things with less than a week before

12 a very substantial hearing prejudices Ell is-Hall 's abi l i t ies to

13 make its case.

14   And I f ind i t--you know, we note this in our brief

15 and I f ind i t  very disingenuous that Pacif iCorp can withhold

16 documents for nearly a month and at the same t ime, object to

17 our--or respond to our objection by saying that we have

18 produced no documents, no materials, to support our object ions. 

19 Now that, obviously, is not true, and if  the Commission has seen

20 our object ion, our object ion is 20 pages long.  I t  ci tes dozens of

21 Pacif iCorp's own documents and we have supported our claims

22 with the best available documents that we have.

23   But for them to not produce documents and

24 simultaneously make the argument that we don't have enough

25 material to support our claims is--that strains the whole purpose
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1 of discovery, and we are enti t led to have documents in a t imely

2 manner.  I  understand that the Commission of ten responds,

3 of ten addresses issues on an expedited basis.  This is--our

4 claims are very serious claims and it  necessitates serious

5 discovery and Ell is-Hall is being forced to push through and

6 argue these claims on a more than expedited basis.  They are

7 gett ing an expedited basis, plus being prejudice by not having

8 the documents in a t imely manner.

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Just so I  understand,

10 have you somewhat--your motion for Rocky Mountain Power is, I

11 guess, is not so much a motion to compel but you're,

12 essential ly,  making arguments that you need addit ional t ime?

13   MR. WOOD:  There are sti l l  missing documents. 

14 There's st i l l  some missing documents.  As we note, they make

15 an objection to some of the LGIA documents, saying that they

16 are conf idential.  As we note, court uniformly hold that you can't

17 withhold documents based on third party conf idential i ty

18 agreements.  That is a common object ion that is being lodged

19 by al l  the part ies here.  I t  is improper.

20   So it 's twofold; we haven't gotten al l  the

21 documents, we have numerous requests for documents were

22 responded to by merely referring us to a website with no specif ic

23 information on where the documents can be found, and, lastly,

24 the prejudice that is rendered by not having responses for one.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  Mr. Solander.



                                                           Prehearing Conference   09/16/13 19

1   MR. SOLANDER:  Thank you.  Honestly, al l  of  the

2 issues that have been raised in Ell is-Hall 's motion to compel

3 would have been handled much more quickly and probably more

4 to the satisfact ion of  El l is-Hall  i f  they has chosen to pursue--not

5 to pursue a formal complaint.

6   When Mr. Wood called me regarding the meet and

7 confer on the original motion to compel, I  told him that we would

8 be wil l ing to produce those documents, al l  of  those documents,

9 with the exception of  the QF applicat ions which were already

10 provided in the init ial response.  Rocky Mountain Power came

11 from the transmission group, which took addit ional t ime to

12 compile and provide to Ell is-Hall .   They--al l  of  the responses

13 document were provided with the exception of  the Blue Mountain

14 LGIA, which, as Mr. Wood pointed out, is conf idential.   We wil l

15 produce that document i f  ordered to, but pursuant to i ts terms,

16 we cannot produce it  without a request and an order f rom a

17 regulatory body as part of  a proceeding, a regulatory

18 proceeding.

19   The remainder of  the documents were

20 hand-delivered to Ell is-Hall 's attorneys on September 10th.  I

21 have the disk which contain al l  those responses if  the

22 Commission wishes to make an in camera review.  I  don't  intend

23 to of fer i t  as an exhibit  because it  is conf idential.

24   W ith respect to public available information, Rocky

25 Mountain Power routinely in i ts cases points part ies to
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1 documents that are publicly available. I t 's never, honestly, been

2 an issue in previous proceedings before the Commission.  We

3 routinely do that due to the large volume of  requests and the

4 large amount of  data that is responsive to the requests. 

5 Organizing, compil ing, producing takes t ime and resources f rom

6 the company, and, quite f rankly, i t  is easier for al l  part ies

7 involved if  the information is publicly available to get i t  f rom the

8 original source.

9   I  have a few addit ional comments when we get to

10 the Latigo motion but that is al l I  have regarding the Blue

11 Mountain proceeding.

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  appreciate that.  That

13 is a good segue into the next motion we have is in the Latigo

14 document, which is 13-035-116 and this is--again, this is

15 Ell is-Hall 's motion to compel Lat igo. Mr. Wood.

16   MR. WOOD:  Thank you.  Once again with respect

17 to Latigo, Lat igo refused to produce a number of documents

18 based on boilerplate and unsubstantiated objections.  Many of

19 the same arguments with respect to Blue Mountain also apply to

20 Latigo.

21   Lat igo has also taken the posit ion of  instead of

22 responding to our discovery requests, arguing the merits of  our

23 claims.  And as we note, courts have held that that 's improper. 

24 They don't  substantiate their object ion.  They instead attack our

25 abil i ty to intervene in this matter, whether our claims are
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1 relevant or meritorious, i f  a party can avoid discovery simply by

2 disagreeing with the other side--the merits of  the other side's

3 case, there never be any discovery. We ful ly expect that Lat igo

4 may have some disagreements with our claims but that does not

5 provide an excuse to not provide discovery.

6   And, once again, i f  a party does not substantiate

7 their object ions, i f  a party do not supply case law to support

8 their posit ions, I  don't  think there is any possible way for the

9 Commission to say that the objections and the responses are

10 proper.  And we need those documents and we are enti t led to

11 those documents. We have made serious claims and--we wil l

12 leave it  at that,  thank you.

13   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.  Mr.

14 Sackett.

15   MR. SACKETT:  Thank you.  The elephant in the

16 room here is that El l is-Hall  is a potential competitor.   I  can't

17 speak to Blue Mountain so much as I  can speak to my cl ient.  

18 So it 's not a matter of  sort of  a standard party in a standard civi l

19 l i t igat ion, having access to everything that is relevant, or if  not

20 even relevant, may lead to relevant information, admissible

21 information.  We have an unusual circumstance where we have

22 a party who insists on seeing everything about what are

23 potential ly competing projects.

24   I t 's one thing for El l is-Hall  to note that the have

25 been granted intervention but what they don't  note is the
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1 Commission has authority to l imit  intervention.  Simply being

2 granted intervention doesn't  given them carte blanche to

3 part icipate in every respect.  Here we have a situat ion where the

4 Commission's rules with respect to conf idential information

5 direct ly af fect what they can and cannot do. So we have we

6 have a party who have come to the table. They are not here to

7 be the watchdog in the way that the Division is or the way that

8 the Off ice is.  They are here to delay the proceeding so that

9 their project can, in some way, go forward.

10   Now, that 's--as I say, that 's the elephant in the

11 room.  I t  wasn't  discussed earl ier,  so to the extent that Lat igo

12 has not responded to every jot and t i t t le about what they want to

13 have from us, and then much of  i t  is driven by the fact that we

14 are not interested in giving them information that,  essential ly,

15 gives them a competit ive leg that they don't  otherwise have.  We

16 wil l ,  perhaps, argue this more with respect to our motion to

17 restrict access but they are closely l inked.

18   So we have given them documents.  We have not

19 stonewalled.  We did give them a large col lect ion of  documents

20 with respect to the PPA and we also understand that Pacif iCorp

21 has given them a large col lect ion of  documents, as well .   One of

22 the touchstones of discovery, even out of  the Utah rules that

23 Ell is-Hall  continues to cite, is that part ies shouldn't  have to give

24 duplicat ive documents.  Essential ly,  they have asked duplicate

25 data requests f rom both the part ies, the QF's and from
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1 Pacif iCorp, to the extent that Pacif iCorp has given them the

2 documents, there isn't  any reason for us to duplicate that.   That

3 is waste of resources and a waste of  t ime and paper.

4   So that is the other thing; we are concerned about

5 the extent to which Pacif iCorp has given documents that they

6 may have improperly used but that is for another matter.  So we

7 have provided documents and to the extent that we haven't

8 provided documents, we believe that they are not ent i t led to the

9 documents because either, A, they are not relevant to the

10 Commission's--the Commission responsibi l i ty to make a

11 judgment about the approval of  this PPA or i t 's competit ive

12 information that they simply aren't  ent i t led to.

13   So I think we have given them everything they are

14 entit led to and, obviously, i f  the Commission order us to

15 produce more, we wil l ,  but we think that is not necessary.  We

16 think they have everything that they are entit led to through

17 Pacif iCorp.

18   MR. WOOD:  If  I  may, just in rebuttal,  a couple of

19 few points; one, the Commission is not the only body that deals

20 with competitors going up against each other in lawsuits.  That

21 happens al l  the t ime in commercial l i t igat ion.  I  worked on a

22 case between Apple and Samsung and you better believe those

23 two part ies had disagreements and had documents that were--

24 that showed trade secrets, that showed patents and trademarks,

25 all  those things are relevant in discovery.
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1   So simply saying that we don't  think that you should

2 have those documents because it  might give you competit ive

3 advantage is not a proper object ion; moreover, i t 's not

4 support ive.  I f  they want to make an al l igat ion that there should

5 be an attorney's eyes only designation, which is what typically

6 happens when you're dealing with competit ive documents and

7 then you have to support that.   And whether there is a trade

8 secret is a question of  law and that they are going to have to

9 demonstrate those documents are marked as trademark in their

10 usual course, they're secured, that they have employed

11 reasonable measures, they don't  make any of those attempts to

12 substantial that object ion, and that object ion was not made in

13 the responses.

14   Second, the fact that you produce some documents

15 does not mean that you've been ful ly responsive, and Utah law

16 holds that an incomplete disclosure is a fai lure to disclose,

17 under Rule 37. And, last ly, this argument that somehow they're

18 not required to produce any documents that Pacif iCorp

19 produced, I  f ind that an interest ing argument because both of

20 their responses were due on the same day.  So how did Latigo

21 now what documents that Pacif iCorp was going to produce

22 unless they combined together to make joint responses, which

23 would have been inappropriate in this matter.  They didn't .   They

24 just stonewalled us and didn't  produce documents, and now that

25 Pacif iCorp has produced some of  the documents, they are going
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1 to try and use that to excuse their own nondisclosure.

2   And, last ly, relevance is determined by the claims

3 and defenses in the act ion; not what one party thinks the

4 Commission has the right to do.  And there is no way that Lat igo

5 can make the argument that our discovery requests do not go to

6 our claims and defenses in this matter, which is the measure of

7 relevance. Thank you.

8   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Just to be clear for

9 the part ies, I  guess I  didn't--we wil l  be addressing the motion

10 from Latigo regarding the applicabil i ty of  the Nondisclosure

11 Agreement.  My intention is to kind of  put a placeholder in the

12 motions and then address some of the procedural matters and

13 then kind of  hit  that at the last because I understand at least

14 one of the part ies have a hard stop at three o'clock and the

15 part ies have agreed with that.  So if  that is okay, we wil l  hit  that

16 later.  So I appreciate that.

17   Now our f inal motion to compel, which is also in the

18 116 docket, which is the Latigo docket and this is a motion to

19 compel by Ell is-Hall Consultants with respect to Rocky Mountain

20 Power.  So with that,  Mr. Wood.

21   MR. WOOD:  That motion is identical to the one

22 from Blue Mountain, so I  don't  think with--

23   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  appreciate i t .  Thank

24 you very much.  Mr. Solander.

25   MR. SOLANDER:  I t  is identical and it  looks l ike i t
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1 was cut and pasted f rom the Blue Mountain one, just by

2 changing the name Blue Mountain to Latigo.  What i t  fai led to

3 note is that the Latigo LGIA was provided and delivered to

4 Ell is-Hall  on September 10th.  I  know of  no documents that are

5 responsive that have not been provided to Ell is-Hall  regarding

6 the Latigo proceeding.

7   This is the second t ime that El l is-Hall  has f i led a

8 pleading that states that documents were not received f rom

9 Pacif iCorp, when, in fact,  they were in the original motion to

10 compel.  They sought the QF applicat ion and support ing

11 documents were init ial ly provided in this reply.  Rocky Mountain

12 Power did provide the Latigo LGIA as cited is the only document

13 that it  has not provided.

14   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.

15   MR. WOOD:  If  I  can brief ly respond to that,  the

16 reason that we objected is that in your response, you claim that

17 you had not produced the LGIA because of  conf idential i ty.

18   MR. SOLANDER:  Only with respect to Blue

19 Mountain.

20   MR. WOOD:  No, go back and read your brief .  I t 's

21 in the 116 matter and you say you haven't  produced it ,  which is

22 the point that we are addressing.  So, obviously, we couldn't

23 have known what you were going to produce a couple of  days

24 ago when we were preparing this motion.

25   MR. SOLANDER:  I  would just note the material
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1 were delivered on September 10th, four days before this motion

2 was f i led.

3   MR. WOOD:  This motion was f i led in August.

4   MR. SOLANDER:  The reply.

5   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.  We have

6 had a lot of  brief ing on this.  I  appreciate everyone's arguments. 

7 I know it 's dif f icult  to make arguments kind of  on the f ly l ike that

8 but I  appreciate i t .   But, again, I  have read al l  the pleadings but

9 this was helpful to hear the posit ions here today.

10   Based upon the pleadings, the arguments, etc.,  I

11 ult imately am not persuaded that addit ional discovery is

12 necessary for--to inform the Commission's considerat ion of  A/B,

13 the PPA between Pacif iCorp and Blue Mountain; and, B, the

14 PPA between Pacif iCorp and Latigo; and, therefore, the motion

15 that have been previously discussed henceforth are denied.

16   Let 's go ahead and move on to--we are at two

17 o'clock here, let 's go ahead and move on to some procedural

18 matters with respect to the hearing on the 19th.  I f  i t  is the

19 okay, I  wil l  ask each of the counsel to identify their witnesses

20 for Thursday.  Go ahead and start with Mr. Solander.

21   MR. SOLANDER:  We intend to call  Paul Clements,

22 senior originator and marketer f rom Pacif iCorp as our witness.

23   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  And Mr.

24 Dodge?

25   MR. DODGE:  Mike Cutbirth of  Champlain W ind wil l
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1 be Blue Mountain's witness.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  apologize,

3 Champlain W ind?

4   MR. DODGE:  Champlain W ind is the developer of

5 the Blue Mountain project--I  should say the general  partner of

6 Blue Mountain Power Partners, LLC.

7   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And Mr. Jetter for the

8 Division?

9   MR. JETTER:  The Division wil l  cal l Charles

10 Peterson, l ikely as our only witness.

11   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And, Ms. Beck, do

12 you have a witness the Off ice wil l  be cal l ing?

13   MS. BECK:  Bela Vastag wil l  be available to answer

14 questions or serve as a witness.  The Off ice does not intend to

15 make any addit ional statements beyond the comments that were

16 submitted.

17   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you.  And, Ms.

18 Hayes?

19   MS. HAYES:  Thank you, Mr. White.  Utah Clean

20 Energy is happy to make Sarah Wright available as a witness. 

21 We are also f ine just leaving what we have f i led on the record

22 without making addit ional comments, but I  can bring Sarah

23 Wright on Thursday, i f  part ies have questions for her.

24   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay, that sounds fair

25 enough.  And, Mr. Wood, for El l is-Hall?
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1   MS. WOOD:  We wil l  be cal l ing Mr. Fishback, we

2 wil l  ask that he be made available; Mr. Clements; Mr. Cutbirth; I

3 am not sure who the representat ive is of  Lat igo but we wil l  be

4 call ing him.  We reserve the right to cross the others.

5   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  understand you wil l

6 have a right to cross-examine.  So you are saying that--I  guess I

7 am interested in Ell is-Hall 's witnesses.  I  understand that you

8 may intend to cross-examine the other part ies witnesses but are

9 there specif ic El l is-Hall  witnesses.

10   MR. WOOD:  Well,  Todd Fishback, so we want to

11 make sure that he is there.

12   MR. SOLANDER:  Mr. Fishback is not available on

13 Thursday.  We do not intend to call  him as a witness.

14   MR. WOOD:  Then we wil l  cal l him.

15   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Mr. Fishback is a

16 Pacif iCorp employee consultant?

17   MR. SOLANDER:  He is an employee, yes.

18   MR. WOOD:  He is in charge of the LGIA site, and

19 as we note in our brief , there was correspondence and our

20 allegation is that the LGIA process got pushed through,

21 expedited, af ter we had f i led an object ion stat ing that no LGIA

22 had been secured before gett ing the PPA.  And, of  course, i f  the

23 merchant side and the transmission side coordinated in order to

24 push that through, that would go to our disparage treatment

25 claim.
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1   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So this witness is for

2 the purpose of  the issue of El l is-Hall 's claim of  disparagement?

3   MR. WOOD:  Yes.

4   MS. WOOD:  Disparage treatment.

5   MR. WOOD:  Disparage treatment.

6   MS. WOOD:  Discrimination, violat ion of  FERC,

7 Schedule 38.

8   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And do you have the

9 potential--where is this witness located, I  guess?

10   MR. SOLANDER:  Port land, Oregon.

11   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let 's put a

12 placeholder on that one for just now.  Mr. Fishback or beck?

13   MR. SOLANDER:  Back.

14   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So far we have a

15 potential Todd Fishback, Mr. Clements you wil l  cal l  through

16 cross-examine, and Mr.--

17   MS. WOOD:  Well,  we want Mr. Clements in our

18 case.  We are wil l ing to consolidate that with the

19 cross-examination but we want him in our case.

20   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay, understood.

21   MS. WOOD:  Then we want Tony Hall .

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And Mr. Cutbirth, who

23 is he?

24   MR. DODGE:  He is the Blue Mountain

25 representat ive.
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1   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And his f irst name

2 again?

3   MR. DODGE:  Mike.

4   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.

5   MS. WOOD:  And we want the Latigo

6 representat ive.

7   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  And whom is that?

8   MS. WOOD:  We haven't  heard f rom Mr. Sackett, so

9 I don't know who he is going to have here.

10   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  And, again, I

11 mean, typically with the Commission, the way it  works is that,

12 you know, the party wil l ,  you know, lay the foundation for

13 pretrial test imony, or what have you, then put their witness on

14 the stand and the part ies have the option of  cross-examine, so

15 I 'm assuming that is what you are --

16   MS. WOOD:  Well,  we haven't  seen any pretr ial

17 test imony.

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  understand.  What I

19 mean, in other words, we wil l  get to that issue.

20   MR. WOOD:  We are going to need to

21 cross-examine someone on the statements that--

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Either the witness wil l

23 be made available for cross-examination, or i f  i t 's not available--

24 you are requesting you are going to cal l  that as a witness?

25   MR. WOOD:  Correct.
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1   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  So, again, we

2 have Todd Fishback.

3   MR. SOLANDER:  I  bel ieve i t 's Tom.

4   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Tom, Paul Clements,

5 Mike Cutbirth, Tony Hall,  then I guess we wil l  discuss what

6 witnesses to be named may be available for cross-examination

7 or whether they wil l  be cal led by Ell is-Hall for purposes of

8 Latigo.  Correct?

9   MR. WOOD:  Correct.

10   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  Is that al l  of

11 the Ell is-Hall--

12   MS. WOOD:  Yes.  Your Honor, and we have had

13 some cracks by people that Mr. Hall is not an expert.  He is.  He

14 is the owner and developer of  the only wind project in Brit ish--in

15 the Brit ish Isles and an engineer.  He is thoroughly famil iar with

16 wind projects. In fact, he even helped Latigo when they were

17 having trouble with gett ing things through the San Juan County

18 Commission.  He is clearly an expert.

19   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let 's go ahead and

20 say if  you're going to lay foundation for your witnesses, we can

21 save that for Thursday, if  that is okay.  Let 's see here, so I  got

22 off  track on Ell is-Hall ,  so we have talked about Rocky Mountain,

23 the Division, Off ice, El l is-Hall ,  so let 's talk to about Lat igo.  Mr.

24 Sackett?

25   MR. SACKETT:  We wil l  have Christ ine Mikel l ,
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1 M-I-K-E-L-L.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  So did I

3 address all  the potential part ies witnesses thus far? Let me

4 know if  I  miss any.  I  wi l l  need to take a small recess to address

5 this question of  a witness that is potential ly unavailable when I

6 guess there is-- let me ask this:  We have heard the arguments, I

7 guess, thus far f rom Ell is-Hall  regarding the need to cal l  this

8 witness and, you know, for evidence.  Does Rocky Mountain

9 Power have a rebuttal to that or an argument of  opposit ion?

10   MR. SOLANDER:  Yes, we would object to cal l ing of

11 Mr. Fishback.  The application that is before the Commission is

12 for the PPA.  Mr. Fishback was not involved in the negotiat ion of

13 the PPA with Blue mountain or Lat igo.  He, as I  side--or as

14 Ell is-Hall  stated, he did work on the transmission side.  That

15 had no bearing on the negotiat ion of  the PPA that is before the

16 Commission at this point because of  the separat ion of  the

17 market and transmission funct ion of  Pacif iCorp.

18   MR. WOOD:  If  I  could, the statement that i t  has no

19 bearing is direct ly contradicted by your own documents.  Your

20 own documents state that as you're trying to approve the PPA,

21 Paul Clements said that we need to be able to negotiate with

22 transmission side, you executed a waiver to be able to do that,

23 and you set that up so that you could get approval of  the PPA

24 without an LGIA in place.  So I don't  think you can say i t  has no

25 bearing on the PPA.  I t  has direct bearing to that specif ic clause
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1 which is the basis of  our object ion that you approved a PPA --

2   MR. SOLANDER:  The point that Mr. Wood is trying

3 to make is direct ly addressed in Schedule 38 and Mr. Clements

4 is more than capable of  discussing 38 with the applicat ion.

5   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  This is with respect to

6 your claim of  disparage treatment; is that r ight?

7   MR. WOOD:  That is right.

8   MR. DODGE:  Can I brief ly address that,  too,

9 because it  could impact the Blue Mountain PPA approval.  I

10 believe this goes direct ly to the point that I hope the

11 Commission--or Your Honor intends to address in the last phase

12 of this, the scope of  the witnesses.  To the extent the

13 Commission decides that whether or not FERC rules were

14 violated, I  am conf ident they were not, but to the extent you

15 intend to address the issue l ike they have invited you, then Mr.

16 Fishback might have a more relevance than if  not.   I f  the

17 Commission identif ies the issues that i t  f inds relevant in

18 addressing the public interest standard for approval of  a QF in

19 this context,  I  think many of  the witnesses in many of  the issues

20 they hope to raise wil l  be irrelevant.

21   So I guess I  would invite you in the context of

22 addressing of  what to do about a witness that isn't  here, to add

23 to that the issue of  what issues does the Commission choose to

24 hear evidence on.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  appreciate that.
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1   MR. WOOD:  And just to clarify, we are not making

2 this basis on FERC.  We set that forth in our objection, that our

3 object ion is based on Utah law, and Utah law says that

4 Pacif iCorp cannot of fer any form of  contract that i t  doesn't  of fer

5 to everyone.  So you can get i t  both at FERC and by Utah law

6 but we have f i led our object ion based on Utah law.

7   MR. DODGE:  Based on that,  you can rule

8 summari ly f rom the bench that Utah law does not prohibit Rocky

9 Mountain from of fering dif ferent terms or condit ions to suppliers. 

10 I don't think that is a stretch for this Commission to do.  I  am

11 just point ing out that to the extent that you can narrow the

12 issues, this can either be a zoo on Thursday or i t  can be a

13 hearing that addresses the issues that the Commission f inds

14 relevant to i ts determination.

15   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood.  I f  you

16 wil l  bear with me for a bit  of  t ime and we wil l  be off  the record.

17           (A discussion was held off  the record.)

18   MS. WOOD:  We have one more witness to add,

19 Michael Roring.

20   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Back on the record,

21 who is Michael Roring with?

22   MS. WOOD:  Mr. Roring is one of  the land owners. 

23 He is the one that has the wind tower on his land or mass that

24 Blue Mountain is relying on.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay, Michael
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1 R-O-R-I-N?

2   MS. WOOD:  W ith a G, R-O-R-I-N-G.

3   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So let 's talk for a

4 second about what the Commission's considerat ion of  these two

5 PPA's is about.  I t 's about compliance with Schedule 38, Tit le

6 54.  What i t  is not about is about, you know, al leged al legations

7 about, you know, potential disparage treatment with a supplier

8 of  power.  Right. So with that said, Mr. Wood or Ms. Wood, help

9 me understand whether Mr.--based upon that,  how--what would

10 you require?  What is the evidence you need from Mr. Fishback?

11   MR. WOOD:  Well,  Schedule 38 requires that the

12 company conduct vigorous due di l igence, and one of  the things

13 that they need to conduct vigorous due di l igence is on is the

14 LGIA process and also site control.   And so in addit ion to the

15 posit ion that both Pacif iCorp and the Division has taken, that an

16 executed LGIA is necessary before the execution of  a PPA.

17   Now if  the Commission is--I  would be interested to

18 know the Commission's basis for bel ieving that the Commission

19 does not have a duty to enforce the Utah code sect ions that we

20 have cited.  Those code sections specif ical ly state--they do not

21 talk about customer.  They talk about person.  And the

22 Commission is charged with ensuring that the regulatory body,

23 or in this case, Pacif iCorp who is funct ioning as a

24 quasi-government entity, ensures that they are providing equal

25 treatment to al l  people.  In fact,  as we noted in our object ion,
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1 Pacif iCorp itself  has agreed in internal correspondence that they

2 have a duty to treat al l  customers the same, and they were

3 referring to this process.

4   And so there has to be some place for people l ike

5 Ell is-Hall  to go when Pacif iCorp comes before this body and

6 says on the approval of  a PPA, "You have to have an executed

7 LGIA.  Schedule 38 requires us to give you--to have an

8 executed LGIA," and then says to another party, "No, you don't

9 have to have that."

10   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.

11   MR. WOOD:  And if  the Commission has prejudged

12 that issue, there needs to be a legal basis for that decision.

13   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So if  I  am hearing you

14 correct ly, what you are saying is you need to talk to Mr.

15 Fishback, or you need to have him to cross-examine or what

16 have you, for--to address Ell is-Hall 's contention that Pacif iCorp

17 has treated Ell is-Hall  disparaging and they have violated

18 Schedule 38; that is what I  heard you say.

19   MR. WOOD:  Not only that they've treated us in a

20 disparage way but they have not complied with Schedule 38. 

21 Schedule 38 requires Pacif iCorp to conduct r igorous due

22 dil igence to ensure that an executed LGIA has been put in place

23 to ensure that the party has site control,  which neither of  these

24 part ies have.  And in the original hearing, we heard from

25 Pacif iCorp that they conducted more due di l igence as to these
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1 projects than to any projects in their history and their documents

2 don't  reveal that.   And most importantly, the documents show

3 that neither of  these part ies have site control.

4   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Mr. Solander, do you

5 have a--I  need to understand if  Schedule 38 requires what Mr.

6 Wood is arguing.

7   MR. SOLANDER:  I  bel ieve Schedule 38 gives

8 Rocky Mountain Power the discret ion to determine whether or

9 not an executed LGIA needs to be in place before the PPA is

10 executed.  Mr. Clements can certainly address that point and

11 Mr. Fishback would not be needed to test i fy on that part point.

12   MS. WOOD:  Let me say that--

13   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  apologize, are you

14 f inished?

15   MR. SOLANDER:  I  am f inished.

16   MS. WOOD:  They pulled that rabbit  out of  the hat,

17 when in the Burwood case, they say, "Oh, you have to have--

18 under Schedule 38, we are now vigorously enforcing Schedule

19 38 and you have to have an executed agreement,"  and then,

20 "Oh, but i f  we don't  think you do, we don't have to."  That is the

21 essence of  what is happening here.  For people we l ike--

22   MR. SOLANDER:  I 'm sorry, is she stat ing what she

23 thinks that Mr. Clements is going to test i fy to or is i t  some sort

24 of argument--

25   MR. WOOD:  We are stat ing what the posit ion you
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1 have previously taken before the Commission.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  The focus here again,

3 and I have heard your arguments, but,  again, the precise focus

4 is what is the Commission's considerat ion about these PPA's. 

5 And so you are saying that you need to have Mr. Fishback f ly

6 down from Port land because you need to address the issue that

7 Pacif iCorp has not fol lowed Schedule 38--

8   MR. WOOD:  That is correct.

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  --because they have

10 not done their due dil igence?

11   MR. WOOD:  That is right.

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Are there any other

13 part ies who to wish to weigh in on this?

14   MR. DODGE:  I  would l ike to weigh in, and if  you

15 wil l  please, I  think you guys have had your say.

16   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Please proceed, Mr.

17 Dodge.

18   MR. DODGE:  I t  goes back to the point,  and as you

19 know, Mr. White, I  need to leave here short ly.

20   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  understand.

21   MR. DODGE:  I  would l ike to make this point

22 because the Commission asked in its notice of this hearing what

23 ought to be the scope of  the issues that you wil l  hear.  I  think

24 the issues as you have identif ied them, compliance with

25 Schedule 38, compliance with Tit le 54, is the correct focus.  I  do
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1 believe that is what the Commission looks at.   This Commission,

2 to my knowledge, has never, in looking at a QF before i t  for

3 approval,  looked at anything l ike did they do suff icient due

4 dil igence.  Schedule 38 doesn't  require them to do any

5 part icular level of  due di l igence.  I t  is at their r isk if  they don't

6 because in a rate proceeding, something could challenge their

7 prudence if  they didn't  do due di l igence.

8   There is a fairly l imited role of the Commission. 

9 This isn't  pre approval l ike i t  is under the pre approval statute

10 where the rate bearers are forever bound by a contract.   This is

11 simply to ensure compliance with the laws and the tari f f  that

12 deal with schedule--with QF contracts.

13   And so for them to say because we read t i t le 54 to

14 say al l  contracts including supplier contracts have to be treated

15 equally, even though they couldn't  cite a case in the country for

16 that not ion.  I t 's the most novel,  r idiculous interpretat ion of  the

17 code I have ever heard, they say that because we read it  that

18 way, we can come in here and talk al l we want about how there

19 was disparage treatment, al l  at the same t ime refusing to

20 produce any documents that wil l  al low us to show a lack of

21 disparage treatment.  They can't identify the scope of  the issues

22 the Commission chooses to hear. That is why I am imploring the

23 Commission to identify the issues you want to hear and to tel l

24 them no on the issues you don't--that isn't  relevant to your

25 considerat ion.
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1   As to Mr. Fishback, he is not a Schedule 38 expert.  

2 He is an interconnection person.  He is not relevant to this.  The

3 FERC rules are not before you and Mr. Clements can answer

4 anything that needs to be answered about Schedule 38, which is

5 the issue before you.

6   I  think the Commission can, again, either let this

7 become a zoo on Thursday and go into al l  kinds of  issues that

8 have no relevance or i t  can tel l  the part ies what i t  deems

9 relevant because it 's ult imately the Commission that has to

10 decide what issues it  cares about and not waste t ime on issues

11 that are not relevant.

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  have heard the

13 arguments.  I  have made a statement with respect to what the

14 Commission's considerat ion of  the PPA is.  I  am not persuaded

15 that Mr. Fishback is necessary to address those issues.  Let me

16 just--before I  go on to the addit ional witness that you have

17 identif ied, Mr. Roring, help me understand what t ime we are

18 dealing with because there are a few other prel iminary issues I

19 would l ike to deal with before you need to leave, Mr. Dodge.

20   MR. DODGE:  I  have really got to go in about ten

21 minutes to the latest.

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let 's put a pin in Mr.

23 Roring for a second and let me address this really quickly and

24 then we can chat about these.

25   W ith respect to documents, evidence, test imony,
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1 now we don't  have pref i led test imony here. That 's--the t ime that

2 the Commission al lows for pref i led testimony, etc.  Are there

3 documents that have been f i led thus far in the docket the

4 part ies wish to, you know, have received into evidence?  Does

5 that make sense?  I am thinking of f  the top of  m head.  For

6 example, the applicat ion, comments.

7   MR. WOOD:  All  of  our exhibits.

8   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Yes.  So do the

9 part ies--and the part ies can discuss or the part ies, can they

10 agree as to, you know, do you want to get together before the

11 hearing to talk about that?  Because I am thinking in any head

12 that, obviously, there may be other issues and I understand the

13 comments, reply comments, wil l  contain both facts and legal

14 allegations that,  obviously, the Commission can give the weight

15 due to, you know, facts versus you know legal arguments.  Do

16 the part ies want to talk about the day or is this too premature to

17 talk about, A, the applicat ion, the comments and reply

18 comments.  And I am not talking again about motions, things of

19 that nature.

20   MR. WOOD:  I don't  quite understand.  I  mean, I

21 don't  think that the actual comments or objections or the sworn

22 test imony, I  don't  see how we can agree to the admissibi l i ty of

23 those.  As far as the documents, we have attached lots of

24 documents to support our object ions that are their documents.  I

25 don't  see any reason why we can't  agree on the admissibi l i ty of
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1 those documents.

2   But argument is not test imony, and that 's what I

3 see that the comments are, they are arguments.  I  mean, I  am

4 not on the stand.  I  signed our objection.  I  am certainly not on

5 the stand as a witness.

6   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Well,  help me

7 understand, then, dif ferent part ies, how would you l ike to

8 proceed.  I t  sounds l ike we are not going to receive into

9 evidence any of  the documents that are going to be f i led, or we

10 are going to go through document by document with respect to

11 the f i l ings, in term of  exhibits, or how do we want to do this?

12   MR. WOOD:  Like I said, I  am f ine as far as

13 stipulat ing to actual documents, st ipulat ing to the application

14 whatever, but the comments are not--I am not test i fy.  I  signed

15 our object ion.  That is the point I  am making.  I  am not the

16 witness.

17   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let me explain i t  a

18 li t t le dif ferently.  I  apologize.  This is probably a l i t t le bit

19 dif ferent than other arenas, but for example, you know, on the--

20 sorry, El l is-Hall 's,  you know, object ions, basically their

21 comments, you know that would be received into evidence.  I t 'd

22 got al l  their exhibits attached.  And, again, those would be--you

23 know, whomever you want, which witness to adopt port ions of

24 that as their sworn test imony, you know, again not legal

25 arguments, would be done.  You know, we receive it  into
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1 evidence, and then that witness is basical ly adopt that would be

2 subject to cross-examination.  That is not uncommon but we

3 understand if  that is not--okay.  So what do you propose, then? 

4 Do you want to propose just your exhibits or do you want to do i t

5 by exhibit  by exhibit?

6   MS. WOOD:  Well,  I  think this is too late to do

7 anything other than to do anything other than exhibit  by exhibit .

8   MR. SACKETT:  I  have a suggestion, and what we

9 intend to do is with respect to comments that we f i led, our

10 witness would, essential ly,  test i fy that the facts that are stated

11 in those documents, she can test i fy to.  I t  is,  in essence, to

12 establish that they are verif ied comments; that is to say to the

13 extent there are factual statements within those comments, Ms.

14 Mikell  wi l l  test i fy that yes, I  adopt them, and that those facts are

15 true to the best of  my belief .

16   I  mean, i t  is a l i t t le bit  backwards.  We might well

17 have f i led those as verif ied reply comments or verif ied

18 comments and had her sign of f  of  them on the outset,  but I  don't

19 see anything wrong with doing i t  sort of  the back end, as well .

20   MR. WOOD:  Did I  understand correct ly, so she wil l

21 be stat ing that under penalty of  perjury, the statements in that

22 are true and correct?

23   MR. SACKETT:  The factual statements.

24   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That is what we

25 discussed earl ier,  factual statements verus --
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1   MR. WOOD:  If  she is wil l ing to do that.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That is not

3 uncommon.  Do any of  the other part ies have an issue for l ike

4 the Division for their adopting the comments of  sworn test imony,

5 etc.?

6   MR. JETTER:  That is exactly what we intend to do.

7   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  Mr. Solander?

8   MR. SOLANDER:  Same.  We have Mr. Clements

9 off ing addit ional test imony but yes.

10   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  Mr. Dodge?

11   MR. DODGE:  I  hadn't--I  mean, i t  is common, you

12 know, Mr. Wood probably doesn't  know the pract ice to--

13   MR. WOOD:  Mr. Dodge, I  real ly--can I--excuse me,

14 I f ind that incredibly unprofessional.

15   MR. SOLANDER:  I  wasn't  attacking him.  I  was

16 saying that because of the fact that he doesn't  practice here, he

17 is probably not aware of  the facts that you're referring to.

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  This is unique, I

19 apologize.

20   MR. DODGE:  And it  isn't  an attack.  That is the

21 pract ical way of--I  had not intended intend on having my witness

22 adopt our comments because I don't think it  is going to be the

23 pract ice here, plus I wil l  say not al l  the exhibits to Ell is-Hall 's

24 comments are relevant, so I don't  think we want to admit them.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  There is a
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1 disagreement here.  You know, let 's just reserve this for a

2 hearing.  You know, again, i f  Ell is-Hall  is not comfortable with

3 this process, you know, we can go through the process of  the

4 part ies who have agreed to i t  and we can take care of  that on a

5 hearing on Tuesday--I am sorry, on Wednesday, sorry.

6   MR. DODGE:  Thursday.

7   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thursday, sorry.

8 There is a lot of  hearings going on right now. Thursday, thank

9 you.  So we wil l  just do that then.

10   The f inal thing, then I wil l  circle back 

11 to--the f inal thing I  wil l  process that probably Mr. Dodge needs

12 to be here for i t ,  which is in terms of  conf idential i ty.   There has

13 been, you know, documents, you know, going back and forth on,

14 you know, paper.  I 'm assuming those wil l  not be introduced into

15 evidence. There has been no notice under the rule that part ies

16 intend to provide--or to produce into evidence conf idential

17 documents; is that the case?

18   MR. WOOD:  There is no way that can be the case

19 because Pacif iCorp has indiscriminately marked by making their

20 CD yellow, every single document they produced to us as

21 conf idential.

22   MS. WOOD:  We have hundreds of  emails saying

23 things l ike, "Can we start our conference cal l in 15 minutes

24 later," nobody made any ef fort  to dist inguish or say why one

25 document was conf idential because it  was a trade secret or
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1 proprietary as opposed to a thousand others that obviously are

2 not.

3   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  But under the rule, I

4 am talking about R 746-100-16(3a), there is a process involved

5 where i f  there's a dispute amongst part ies, but then, ult imately,

6 if  you are going to go forward and plan to submit into evidence

7 conf idential documents, that those have been identif ied, do

8 you--

9   MR. WOOD:  And there is also, in that rule, the

10 requirement that the part ies not mark things indiscriminately as

11 all  conf idential and we raised these arguments in our object ion.

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So help me

13 understand for Thursday, again, i t  becomes extremely

14 cumbersome.  We have the potential for streaming, we have

15 part ies in here who may or may not have signed the

16 nondisclosure Agreement, help me understand what the most

17 effective and ef f icient way to deal with conf idential documents

18 wil l  be on Thursday.

19   MS. WOOD:  Well,  to identify what documents are

20 truly conf idential.   That would have been the thing to do f rom

21 the beginning but nobody's bothered to do that,  and we refuse

22 to treat 100,000 documents, emails invit ing people to lunch and

23 so forth, as conf idential.  Nobody has identif ied--what they are

24 supposed to do is identify discrete, proprietary, conf idential

25 documents; not treat every document in the case as
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1 conf idential.

2   MR. WOOD:  And they can't  seal an entire

3 proceeding and prohibit  our cl ients f rom even having a view into

4 what is going on in the proceeding through that improper

5 process.

6   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Part ies, Rocky

7 Mountain Power, how do you propose doing this because, again,

8 I don't--the Commission doesn't  view discovery--

9   MR. SOLANDER:  I f  we had some idea of  what

10 documents they intend to rely on, we could of fer a scaled down

11 version of  what is and isn't  conf idential but I don't  know what

12 they intend to of fer.   And if  you want to do a piece mail at the

13 hearing, i t  could take quite a long t ime.

14   MS. WOOD:  Well,  I  think the way to do i t  would

15 have been for them to tel l  us f rom the get-go what they consider

16 proprietary.

17   MR. SOLANDER:  Or they could have objected or

18 they could have said that we thought the conf idential

19 designation was over broad prior to now.

20   MR. WOOD:  We did say that.

21   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let me throw this out

22 here.  I f  there is a dispute whether something is conf idential or,

23 you know, marked overly broad, etc.,  can you at least identify

24 which documents are disputed that you plan--whether there is a

25 true basis for conf idential i ty or not,  which documents you intend
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1 to--

2   MR. WOOD:  I have not seen any document that

3 they've produced to us that I  think are truly properly designated

4 that way.  In the face of  this proceeding, there just aren't .  

5 There is nothing there that gives a window into trade secrets or

6 proprietary information that can be used by my cl ients to their

7 competit ive advantage.  I  mean, there is just nothing there.

8   Their comments back and forth between Pacif iCorp

9 and Latigo and Pacif iCorp and Blue Mountain are just--they are

10 not--they don't  typical ly fal l  within the type of  document that

11 would be interpreted by that designation.  I  understand they

12 designated them all  that way but that puts a burden on us for

13 their improper designation.

14   Now, obviously, we are going to be relying on many

15 of the documents that we cite to in our object ion, but these

16 proceedings are presumptively open, as are most proceedings. 

17 And even in proceedings where you conceal it  f rom the public 's

18 view, the part ies, at a minimum, have a right to see what is

19 going on regarding their claims.  So I don't  think the proceeding

20 needs to be streamed but my cl ient needs to be able to know

21 what is going on.

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  We appreciate your

23 advice to the Commission; however, the Commission does

24 stream, typical ly, documents; however, in proceedings--however,

25 if  there are claims of  conf idential i ty,  we stop the streaming and
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1 we redact the transcript ion.

2   MR. WOOD:  That is what I am saying.  I  don't  have

3 any problem with that.   I  don't have any problem with the

4 Commission not streaming.  But I  am more concerned about my

5 client having to argue their claims and be barred f rom the

6 proceeding because every document that they gave to us has

7 been marked conf idential.   I t 's an over designation that would

8 bar our cl ients f rom having any view into the proceeding.

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  am not sure i f  we

10 can, you know--it  pains me to say this, but I  think we are going

11 to have to deal with at the hearing, I  guess, on a document by

12 document basis.  I  am not sure how else to deal with i t  in a

13 short t ime basis.  So we wil l  just leave it  at that and deal i t  with

14 it  for Thursday.

15   MR. SACKETT:  I  have a suggestion.  One thing I

16 don't  want to see happen on Thursday is for,  to use a metaphor

17 that Mr. Dodge has used, to turn into a zoo, but if  Ell is-Hall  has

18 documents set aside, the fact that they have a whole set of

19 documents that are designated as conf idential and not al l  of

20 which they think are conf idential,  i f  they intend to introduce

21 documents f rom that col lect ion, then let them suggest to Rocky

22 Mountain Power, or to us for those who involve Latigo, ask i f  we

23 believe they are conf idential and would have any object ion to

24 their being publicly identif ied and test if ied about.

25   MS. WOOD:  We are not going to have t ime to do
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1 that.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let me turn back to

3 the rule here because we turned away f rom that pretty quickly

4 and feel f ree to turn to i t  because it 's extremely important to

5 look at.   I t 's R 746-100-16(3a) and if  you have the l i t t le, red

6 book, i t  is now blue. I t 's on page .157.  So I am going to go

7 ahead and read this.  I  want you to help me understand, you

8 know, where I  am of f  here, but it  says, "Receipt into Evidence;

9 At least ten (10) days prior to the use of  or substantive

10 reference to any conf idential information as evidence, i f

11 pract icable, the person intending to use such conf idential

12 information shall  make that intent ion known to the providing

13 person.  The requesting person and the providing person shall

14 make a good faith ef fort  to reach an agreement so that the

15 conf idential information can be used in a manner which wil l  not

16 reveal its trade secret, conf idential or proprietary nature."

17   Now I understand that,  you know, that may or may

18 not happen but here is where i t  kind of  comes to us, the

19 Commission; " I f  such ef forts fai l ,  the providing person shall

20 separately identify, within f ive (5) business days, which

21 port ions, i f  any, of  the documents to be offered or referenced on

22 the record containing conf idential information shall  be placed in

23 the sealed record."

24   So I guess I am trying to understand if  there is a

25 dispute of whether something is overly marked as conf idential,
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1 etc.,  there's st i l l  a claim of  conf idential i ty by Pacif iCorp, or

2 whomever, and so the duty, at least as the way I see it ,  is the

3 notice is upon Ell is-Hall to provide those documents or identify

4 the documents.

5   MR. WOOD:  You skipped over one word, i f

6 pract icable, and if  you mark thousands and thousands of

7 documents, al l  designated one way, is it  pract ical to require

8 Ell is-Hall  on an expedited motion to go through document by

9 document, among thousands of  pages, to make that designation.

10   MS. WOOD:  We didn't even have them ten days

11 ago, so.. .

12   MR. WOOD:  We got documents last week.

13   MS. WOOD:  And Latigo never designated anything

14 as conf idential.

15   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  am going to take

16 this one under advisement.  You know, honestly, I  guess what

17 I 'm--the claim of  conf idential i ty was made some t ime ago and

18 there is st i l l  a dispute, so I  guess I  understand that but you are

19 supposed to identify disputed documents, in other words.

20   MS. WOOD:  The claim of  conf idential i ty was not

21 made according to the rules.  You're jumping to conclusions. 

22 The rule says that they have to have a certain entry on them,

23 and that the ones are conf idential have to be on yel low paper. 

24 What we got is CD's with thousands of  documents with a yel low

25 sticker, with no way of  knowing, and the rules are so clear that
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1 you can't over designate.

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood, but back

3 to the sentence I was talking about, that is what I  am focusing

4 on, when I am--when I look at this issue further.  In other words,

5 you have disputed documents that you say they claim thousand

6 of documents which is--

7   MS. WOOD:  How do we know they are disputed?

8 We have no way of  knowing what 's disputed because we don't

9 know which ones they were claiming conf idential i ty and they had

10 an obligat ion to f ive days to prove their claims.

11   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let 's table this for--

12 we wil l  discuss at the hearing on Thursday, I  guess.

13   So what I  am--just so you know, Mr. Dodge, I  am

14 going to address the issue of  the remaining witnesses and then I

15 am going to talk about the motion of Lat igo.

16   MR. DODGE:  I  certainly have no objection to your

17 continuing with that and I do apologize for having to leave.  I

18 also apologize that I  wi l l  miss the fun on Thursday.  My partner

19 wil l  be here.  I  have an unresolvable conf l ict  that day.

20   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood.

21   MR. DODGE:  But I  appreciate your t ime.

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Thank you,

23 understood.

24   Okay.  So back to the issue of  Mr. Fishback. I  was

25 not persuaded.  I  laid out what the issues--I  am not persuaded
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1 that his attendance f rom Port land is necessary to address those

2 issues.  These are--I just don't bel ieve i t 's necessary that the

3 Commission's considerat ion of  the PPA between these two

4 separate counterpart ies.

5   MS. WOOD:  Well,  let me just make our record that

6 there were no grid connection agreements, no LGIA's between

7 these part ies when the motion was made to have their PPA's

8 approved, and it  was only af ter we made our object ion that they

9 rushed through those.

10   MR. SOLANDER:  I  object to her characterizat ion

11 and I also object to Ms. Wood testifying to this.  She can cal l  a

12 witness on Thursday to test i fy.

13   MS. WOOD:  We want to cal l  Mr. Fishback to show

14 that it  was rushed through in response to our objection.

15   MR. SOLANDER:  Object ion, again.

16   MS. WOOD:  We are going to make that prof fer and

17 we should have a right to hear i t .   Pacif iCorp is a big company. 

18 They know this is a big issue.  I t  was central in our object ion,

19 and if  they are going to rest on the fact that he is in Port land,

20 when we have no abil i ty to compel him by subpoena or any

21 other way, that seems unfair,  and we wil l  make a prof fer with

22 respect to what we think he would test ify about.  But we think he

23 should be available for cross-examination to explain the

24 noncompliance with Schedule 38 unti l  we f i le--

25   MR. SOLANDER:  I  object again to Ms. Wood's
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1 characterizat ion.  Mr. Clements wil l  test i fy to the company's

2 handling of  the PPA under Schedule 38.

3   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  You are prof fering

4 statements, Ms. Wood.

5   Okay.  So let 's talk about Mr. Roring.  What is the

6 intent of--who is Mr. Roring again?

7   MS. WOOD:  Mr. Roring, he is sit t ing here, he is a

8 property owner.  Blue Mountain is relying on wind data f rom his

9 property which is not part of  their project.   I t  goes to whether

10 Schedule 38 has been complied with.

11   MR. WOOD:  This also goes to whether they had

12 site control.   They have repeatedly, in our original--El l is-Hall 's

13 original intervention in the 100 matter, we noted that Blue

14 Mountain was moving forward on land on which Mr. Roring is the

15 owner and which Ell is-Hall  has lease agreements.  And Mr.

16 Roring is going to test i fy about where his land is and the fact

17 that Blue Mountain doesn't  have a right to that land and that

18 Blue Mountain is using wind data f rom met towers on his land

19 that are not subject to their leases but are in fact subject to

20 Ell is-Hall 's leases.

21   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Do the part ies have

22 an objection to that?  I  am f ine i f  Mr. Roring is available.  Okay,

23 let 's move on.

24   So our last and f inal motion of  the day is a motion

25 of Lat igo W ind Park, and this is Docket 13-035-116, to which
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1 restrict the applicat ion of  a Nondisclosure Agreement in this

2 proceeding.  I  guess my f irst question is, based upon what I

3 have read in the pleadings f rom Ell is-Hall ,  do we have any

4 information that has been designated as conf idential that has

5 been provided to counsel for El l is-Hall ,  which pursuant to the

6 NDA, could be accessed by Ms. Cerut i  or Mr. Hall? Again, this is

7 stuf f --this is information that has been designated.

8   MR. SACKETT:  As we understand it ,  information

9 that was provided by Pacif iCorp to Ell is-Hall  contained

10 conf idential information, and we don't  bel ieve that Mr. Hall  or

11 Ms. Cerut i are enti t led to review any of  that information.

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Is this information

13 that is actually designated as conf idential or--

14   MR. SACKETT:  We don't  know exactly.  I  mean,

15 our motion goes to the question generally, saying that whatever

16 it  is that they have, and whoever has supplied i t ,  whether we

17 supplied i t  or whether Pacif iCorp supplied i t ,  to the extent that

18 it 's conf idential and to the extent that they think that having

19 signed the conf idential i ty agreement gives them l icense to look

20 at i t ,  we believe they do not.  They do not--those two individuals

21 do not quali fy under the applicable rule.

22   I  mean, the sentence is to so clear that I  am not

23 sure why there should be much question about i t .  Persons

24 designated as experts, and exerts are entit led to look at

25 information, but persons designated as experts shall  not include
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1 persons employed by the part icipants who could use the

2 information in their normal job funct ions to the competit ive

3 disadvantage of  the person providing the conf idential

4 information.

5   The person providing i t  in the f irst instance would

6 have been Latigo, even though it  may have come through

7 Pacif iCorp.  So those folks are simply not ent i t led to look at

8 that.  That 's the f ramework that the Commission setup to

9 separate out who are enti t led, recognizing the part ies do need

10 to have access.  They have access through their independent

11 experts that can't  harm the provider of  the information, and to

12 their attorneys, and these two folks do not have those

13 quali f icat ions.

14   MS. WOOD:  Let me say, f irst of  al l ,  that the rule,

15 once again, contemplates the identif icat ion of  specif ic

16 information that consti tutes a trade secret or is otherwise of

17 such a highly sensit ive or proprietary nature that public

18 disclosure would be appropriate. Latigo produced everything

19 they produced with no designations.

20   MR. SACKETT:  We have no problem about that

21 information.

22   MS. WOOD:  And they haven't  designated anything-

23 -they haven't  identif ied anything that was produced by

24 Pacif iCorp that could be used in that fashion, but they also jump

25 over the rule, and the rule specif ical ly provides that i t 's not
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1 limited.  I t  specif ical ly provides that employees who need the

2 information--the specif ic language R 746-100-16(1d) specif ical ly

3 provide that persons employed by the part icipants are granted

4 access to conf idential information to the extent reasonably

5 necessary for performance of  work on the matter.

6   These individuals undertook an undertaking to keep

7 it  conf idential for use only in this matter. They are specif ical ly

8 allowed, under the rule, to have access to the information to the

9 extent reasonably necessary for performance of the work on the

10 matter.  We could not do this alone.  And, furthermore, this

11 object ion didn't  come in unti l  af ter Rocky Mountain had

12 produced the information.  The undertaking was made, the

13 information was provided.  In compliance with the rule, we

14 provided that information, so what are they going to do about i t

15 at this point?

16   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Let me just refocus

17 up here.  I  am glad you brought up the rule because I want to

18 come back to talk about i t ,  but the thing I  am trying to get to is

19 that, do we need to address this? Are there documents that

20 have been disclosed that are st i l l --someone is maintaining

21 conf idential i ty for that--in other words, whether these ones that

22 Latigo, or i f  there's one that Rocky Mountain Power, has

23 designated as conf idential i ty are st i l l  at issue.

24   MR. WOOD:  Let me just say that to clari fy, when

25 our cl ients undertook the undertaking, we provided them the
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1 documents that were produced to us.  When Latigo made it--

2   MR. SACKETT:  I t 's Latigo, Mr. Wood.

3   MR. WOOD:  Excuse me, Latigo.  When Latigo

4 made its motion, we did everything that we could, we took back

5 all  the documents f rom our cl ient,  we sequestered them, and

6 any addit ional documents that have come in, we have

7 maintained as sequestered, pending the resolution of  this

8 motion.  So there have been documents that have been

9 received, part icularly the documents that Pacif iCorp produced to

10 us last week that have not be shared with anybody but counsel,

11 and we felt  that was the appropriate step to take given the

12 motion.  So I don't  know if  that is what you are looking for with

13 your question.

14   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That is,  I  appreciate

15 it .   So let me turn back to the rule.  So Ms. Wood quoted f rom

16 the rule, and the sentence that is af ter that,  "To the extent

17 reasonably necessary for performance of  work on the matter,"

18 but this is the one I am part icularly interested in:  "Persons

19 designated as experts shall not include persons employed by

20 the part icipants who could use the information in their normal

21 job funct ions to the competit ive disadvantage of the person

22 providing the conf idential information."

23   So, basical ly, we are lef t with the disagreement

24 between Latigo and Ell is-Hall  as to whether Ms. Cerut i  and Mr.

25 Hall are persons employed by Ell is-Hall  who could use
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1 conf idential information in the normal job funct ions to the

2 disadvantage of  Lat igo.

3   MR. WOOD:  But they are not employees.  They are

4 the part icipants.  They are the owners.  They are not

5 employees.

6   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Help me understand

7 your arguments.  Help me square that sentence with--

8   MR. WOOD:  Because they are the part icipants. 

9 They are the two owners in Ell is-Hall .  They are not employees

10 of El l is-Hall .   Documents haven't  been shared with employees of

11 Ell is-Hall .   They have been shared with the part icipants. 

12 Obviously, the part icipants, in order to part icipate, have to see

13 the documents.  They have to part icipate.  They can't  part icipate

14 without seeing the documents.

15   MR. SACKETT:  That is not what the rule says.

16   MR. WOOD:  The rule says about employees, not

17 part icipant.

18   MS. WOOD:  And it  also says that there has to be

19 some way to use the information to the competit ive

20 disadvantage of  the person providing the conf idential

21 information, not Lat igo but the person providing, which is Rocky

22 Mountain.  And since Rocky Mountain was the producing party

23 here, they have to show that we could use the information that

24 they provided to their competit ive disadvantage.

25   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Well,  let me ask you
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1 this.  You know, I mean, I  don't  want to get into a legal

2 argument.  I  think I have a pretty good idea of  what I  think the

3 intent and meaning of  the rule is, but are you--is i t  your

4 contention that neither Mr. Hall  or Ms. Cerut i ,  in their posit ions,

5 they could use the information contained?

6   MS. WOOD:  None of  the information that we have

7 seen or reviewed could be used to any competit ive advantage.

8   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That is my focus--

9   MS. WOOD:  Nobody could use it .

10   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So, help us

11 understand, if  the focus again, putt ing aside our disagreement

12 about what the rule means, i f  the focus is are these two

13 part icipants, employees, whatever you want to cal l  them, are

14 they--in their posit ion, could they use this to the potential

15 disadvantage?

16   MR. SACKETT:  I  think that is fair ly clear. We have

17 got two or three companies, organizat ions, that are in the

18 business of  trying to develop wind projects and they are in

19 dif ferent states of  progression, f rankly, as we have indicated in

20 our comments.  We, Latigo, is much further along than is

21 Ell is-Hall ,  and we wil l  probably talk about that on Thursday.  But

22 the fact is that the col lect ion of  information that is in the hands

23 of Pacif iCorp provided, in large part,  by Latigo because they

24 involve negotiat ions to get to a PPA and an interconnected

25 agreement, as well .
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1   MR. WOOD:  Excuse me--

2   MR. SACKETT:  W il l  you let me--wait  unt i l  I  am

3 f inished.

4   MR. WOOD:  I have someone in the gallery here

5 taking a picture, I  just saw you take a picture of  me.

6   SPEAKER:  Is that not al lowed?

7   MS. WOOD:  No, i t 's not.

8   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  We don't have a rule

9 of pictures taken--

10   MS. WOOD:  No, this is very important. People

11 have the right of  their privacy and we can't  have people--

12   MR. WOOD:  --shooting pictures f rom the gallery.

13   MS. WOOD:  --shooting pictures f rom the gallery.

14   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  The gallery, please do

15 not take picture during the proceeding.  We have a request for

16 no pictures, so please adhere to that.  Thank you.

17   MS. WOOD:  And please erase what she has taken.

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Sorry, please

19 proceed, Mr. Sackett.

20   MR. SACKETT:  I  was saying that given the fact

21 that we have two companies that is are, indeed, competitors for

22 wind projects in certain respects and then Latigo having been

23 through, approximately, six years of  development of  a project in

24 gett ing toward the cri t ical parts of  the end of  i t ,  the information

25 that is now in the hands of  Pacif iCorp, essential ly,  is a roadmap
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1 to how you do one of  those projects.  We don't  know, f rankly,

2 what they do and don't  know.  They can snicker about i t ,  i f  they

3 like, but we don't  know what they can and can't  do on their own

4 hook, so that is the purpose of  the Commission's rule, f rankly.

5   And as to parsing the sentence, the way the

6 Commission set the rule up is that they expect that part ies, who

7 have a serious intent to put on evidence in a case l ike this, wil l

8 bring an expert;  that is to say, an outside expert.  That is how

9 the rule is designed.

10   I f  El l is-Hall  wants to bring in an outside expert who

11 has a responsibi l i ty,  ethical responsibil i t ies to his profession to

12 analyze what is going on here, then they are enti t led to do that.  

13 But they are not ent i t led to paint "Expert" of  the back of  people

14 who are part icipants and say they are experts and they are

15 entit led to everything that is out there that may be commercial ly

16 sensit ive or conf idential.

17   MS. WOOD:  Let 's hear what the commercial

18 sensit ive and conf idential information is.  We have used that

19 term as though it  exists in these documents and our submission

20 is that it  does not.

21   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Why don't we do this: 

22 Again, I  am focused on that second sentence.  I ,  f rankly, don't

23 know what Ms. Cerut i  or Mr. Hall  does, so i t 's dif f icult for me to

24 understand that in the context of  that second sentence about

25 whether or not they could use it  in a competit ive disadvantage. 
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1 Do we need to go ahead and swear them in and talk about what

2 they do?  I don't  know what they do.

3   MR. WOOD:  Mr. Hall  is in the UK right now. He is

4 there for the birth of  his f irst grandchild, so he is not available

5 right now.

6   MS. WOOD:  But i f  you are focusing on that,  would

7 you please explain how you explain away persons employed by

8 the part icipants to the extent reasonably necessary for the

9 performance of  work on the matter?

10   MR. SACKETT:  I  have a response to that,  Your

11 Honor, and the response is that sentence is a subset of  experts. 

12 The way that is constructed is that including--i t 's a subset of

13 experts in the matter.

14   MS. WOOD:  No, i t 's persons employed by

15 part icipants to the extent reasonably necessary for performance

16 of work on the matter.  But all  of  that is beside the point i f  we

17 don't  have any conf idential information here, and we don't .

18   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  think we can deal

19 with this and put aside the--we have claim of  conf idential i ty.   Is

20 Mr. Hall  going to be at the hearing on Thursday?

21   MR. WOOD:  He is hopeful ly f lying back.

22   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Okay.  Well,  again,

23 my focus is--I mean, I know you l ike to read those f irst few

24 sentences but I  can't  ignore that in the connection of  that last

25 sentence.  So the Commission's focus is on whether or not
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1 those part ies could potential ly, in their normal job funct ion--so I

2 guess what we would need to do is, you know, again, we were

3 hoping to the deal with this today but we can deal with this on

4 Thursday and address that motion with respect to restr ict ions

5 because we are not in posit ion to know what the normal job

6 functions of  Mr. Hall  and Ms. Cerut i .

7   MR. WOOD:  Well,  Your Honor, you are not in a

8 posit ion to know what the information is that wil l  be brought out

9 in the hearing, and one of  the--is proprietary.  Nobody has

10 identif ied--I mean, we are sit t ing here talking about something

11 as though there was a secret sauce here.  Now if  they had

12 produced their f inancial information, information about their

13 analysis of  the prof i tabi l i ty of  the project,  something l ike that,

14 we'd have something to talk about.  But al l  we are talking about

15 is turbine.  Everybody knows turbines.

16   MR. WOOD:  They haven't designated their

17 turbines.

18   MS. WOOD:  They haven't  designated their turbine,

19 so there is no secret there.  What are we talking about that

20 could possibly be used by a competitor?  And I appreciate Mr.

21 Sackett thinking they are leading the way but our cl ient has

22 actually started construct ion because we have a building permit

23 and a condit ional use permit,  which his cl ient doesn't  have. So

24 for them to say they are further down the road and that

25 somehow we are going to see how they went about this --
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1   MR. WOOD:  We already have our own turbine.

2 We've selected a turbine.  We are f inanced.

3   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So let me understand,

4 Ms. Wood, you are essential ly saying the horse before the cart

5 here is to identify the conf idential information and then

6 determine whether or not--

7   MS. WOOD:  Somebody could use it  to competit ive

8 advantage, yes.  

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  So are you saying

10 that with respect to Mr. Sackett 's motion, that i t  would be a

11 case-by-case determination of  the applicabil i ty of  the

12 nondisclosure agreement?

13   MS. WOOD:  Absolutely, based on what information

14 is going to be presented at the hearing.

15   MR. WOOD:  I mean, as it  stands right now, we

16 have the email saying, "When do you want to go to lunch, " that

17 are designated as conf idential and protected.

18   MS. WOOD:  Well,  i f  you accept that as conf idential

19 the way Rocky Mountain Power did.  Usually, in my experience,

20 when people have serious trade secrets, proprietary information,

21 they pull those out, and they say, "This is the secret sauce and

22 we don't  want anybody to see them," and they haven't  bothered

23 to do that.

24   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  This is going to be a

25 good thing to address in the context of  we have two remaining
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1 issues of process, I  guess, to deal with on Thursday; one being

2 how to deal with the documents in question, which, you know,

3 have disagreements with respect to claims of  conf idential i ty and

4 how to deal with kind of  the document by document and receive

5 into evidence and how we deal with that.

6   And the second question is, you know, I  guess we

7 are going to have to deal with this motion further on Thursday. 

8 Does that sound okay?  So I think--let me actually do this, I

9 apologize.  Let me take one more brief  recess--sorry, Mr.

10 Jetter?

11   MR. JETTER:  Something procedural ly that we

12 might want to talk about quickly is just what the Commission is

13 expecting part ies to bring, as far as documents, just to cover

14 copies for each party, how they are going to present what into

15 evidence, what they are going to give to the court reporter,

16 because the part ies may not be aware of  what the Commission

17 requires for that and what the Commission is looking for in this

18 case.

19   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Well--

20   MR. JETTER:  That may expedite this issue if  the

21 part ies can bring the documents that they want to put into

22 evidence ideally, potential ly labelled as what they are looking at

23 and then the other part ies can look through them.

24   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Are we talking about

25 premarked?
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1   MR. JETTER:  Yes, something we can look through

2 before and if --part ies may decide that we think this small set of

3 documents intended to be entered into the record are

4 conf idential,  i t  might help to sort this out and expedite i t  a l i t t le

5 bit .

6   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  think that is a good

7 suggestion and I would appreciate that.   I f  there are going to be

8 documents, whether there is going to be a dispute about

9 conf idential i ty or not,  have them premarked and, you know,

10 copies for,  obviously, the court reporter, the part ies, myself .

11   MS. WOOD:  How do you want them marked?

12   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I t  probably makes

13 sense to just mark them sequential ly,  for example, RMP No. 1,

14 you know, so forth, you know, Division, or DPU 1 and so forth.  I

15 mean, that is typical ly with Commission pract ice.  That is

16 typically how we--and if  there's addit ional ones beyond that,

17 then we can, you know --

18   MS. WOOD:  We can would go Ell is-Hall  1, 2, 3?

19   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Yes, that makes

20 sense to me or you can do EHC or whatever is going to save on

21 ink is f ine.

22   MR. SACKETT:  W ith respect to documents that we

23 have already f i led, for example, our comments and reply

24 comments and that sort of  thing that we would have our witness

25 refer to, do you want us to bring separate copies of  those, or
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1 are they considered--

2   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  I  think i f  part ies are

3 going to request and there's no object ion to receiving, for

4 example, the Division, I  don't  see the need to premark those. 

5 We can refer to those as, you know--

6   MS. WOOD:  I t  would be helpful to have a set,  a

7 whole set,  whatever i t  is,  so we can work f rom it so we are not

8 guessing who is going--

9   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Do part ies have an

10 object ion, for example, RMP No. 1, the application--

11   MR. SOLANDER:  That is f ine with Rocky Mountain

12 Power.

13   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  That is f ine.  I  have

14 no problem with that.   I  am going to take one more brief--I

15 apologize to do this but I  want to make sure, I  have to think a

16 li t t le clearly here, we are for nine o'clock on Thursday, so let me

17 take a quick--any other procedural matters that part ies want to

18 address before--

19   MR. JETTER:  I  just want to make one comment

20 while we are st i l l  on the record.  There was reference earl ier to

21 the 12-035-100 docket and the posit ion of  the Division with

22 respect to Schedule 38 and the requirement of  the transmission

23 agreement.  To clarify, I  think it  was stated by one of  the other

24 part ies that the Division said that that was a current requirement

25 of Schedule 38 and I bel ieve the Division's posit ion in that
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1 docket has been that we think i t  should be going forward but i t

2 hasn't been in the past,  and so I  just wanted to clari fy that while

3 we were sti l l  on the record.

4   MR. WOOD:  I think that was docket 22, just for

5 clari f icat ion.  I  think you said the 100 matter.  I  think i t 's actually

6 13-035-22 or we referred to i t  as the Verba (sic) matter.

7   MS. WOOD:  And we agreed with your analysis that

8 you said that i t  was going to be going forward.

9   MR. JETTER:  I  think we may have addressed it  in

10 both dockets.

11   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Understood.  Please

12 bear with me for a moment i f  that is okay.

13         (A discussion was held of f  the record.)

14   HEARING OFFICER WHITE:  Again, any other

15 procedural issues that need to be addressed today?  I  know we

16 have the two remaining issues.  Hearing none, we are adjourned

17 today and go of f  the record and look forward to seeing you al l

18 on Thursday morning.  Thank you. 

19        (The hearing was concluded at 3:45 p.m.)
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